
SUBJECT

Public Comment Period:

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

P.M. NAME

REGULAR SESSION OF THE PAMLICO COUNTY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

MONDAY, MAY 6, 2024

7:00 Chairman Bohmert Call Meeting to Order
Invocation

23-24-190 Request for approval of Board Releases

Pledge of Allegiance
Approval of the April 15, 2024 Regular Session and Closed 
Session Minutes and April 23, 2024 Budget Meeting Minutes

Each speaker is asked to limit comments to three (3) minutes. Direct your comments to the full board, not to an
individual Board member or staff member. Although the Board is interested in hearing your concerns, speakers
should not expect Board action or deliberation on subject matter brought up during the Public Comment segment.
The Public Comment period shall not exceed a total of fifteen minutes, unless the Board entertains a successful
majority vote to extend this period.

Additions and/or deletions to the Agenda

CONSENT AGENDA
23-24-189 Request for approval of Budget Amendments

23-24-196 Request to approve Car Purchase for DSS

23-24-191 Request for approval to Advertise Outstanding 2023 Taxes 

23-24-192 Request to Approve Carr Riggs and Ingram Contract 

23-24-193 Request for approval to Appoint Dr. Jeremy Johnson to Eastern Carolina Workforce 
Development Board (ECWDB)

23-24-194 Request for approval to Amend Deductible Reimbursement Policy

23-24-195 Request for approval of Pamlico County Board of Health Handbook 

CORRESPONDENCE AGENDA

23-24-197 Request for Closed Session to discuss Health Director Performance Review 

23-24-198 Discussion Request: Direction Regarding Lobbying Activities for Bay River Metro 
Sewer District 

County Commissioner, County Attorney, County Manager and Finance Officer time and closed session if applicable.



REGULAR SESSION MINUTES OF THE 
PAMLICO COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MONDAY, APRIL 15, 2024 

The Pamlico County Board of Commissioners met in regular session on Monday, April 15, 2024 at 
7:00pm in the Patsy H. Sadler room of the Pamlico County Courthouse.  Commissioners Missy 
Baskervill, Candy Bohmert, Doug Brinson, Kari Forrest, Pat Prescott, Carl Ollison and Ed Riggs were 
present. Also present were County Attorney Dave Baxter, County Manager Tim Buck and Clerk to the 
Board Tracy Boyd. Finance Officer Bill Fentress was not present.  

Chairman Bohmert called the meeting to order and led the assemblage in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Chairman Bohmert asked if there were any corrections, additions, and/or deletions to the March 20, 
2024 Budget Retreat Minutes and April 1, 2024 Regular Session Minutes. There were no changes, then 
on a motion made by Commissioner Brinson and seconded by Commissioner Riggs, the following 
resolution was unanimously approved. 

BE IT RESOLVED, the March 20, 2024 Budget Retreat Minutes and April 1, 2024 Regular 
Session Minutes are hereby approved, and the Chairman’s signature is authorized thereon.  

Chairman Bohmert invited Daniel Simpson and Kait Neeland from Cooperative Extension to present 
their 2023 Program Report. Daniel discussed their mission is to transform science into everyday 
solutions for North Carolinians through programs and partnerships focused on agriculture and food, 
health and nutrition, and 4-H youth development.  

Chairman Bohmert asked if there were any other additions and/or deletions to the agenda; Commissioner 
Riggs made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Prescott and unanimously approved, to add: (6a.) 
Request approval of JCPC County Funding Plan to the Consent Agenda.  

The Board then turned their attention to the Consent Agenda 

On a motion made by Commissioner Baskervill and seconded by Commissioner Riggs, the following 
resolutions were unanimously approved.  

BE IT RESOLVED, the request to approve to Release/Refund GAP Bills Erroneously 
Issued to Elected Officials, are hereby approved. [23-24-177]   

BE IT RESOLVED, the request to Reappoint Debra Harrison to PCC Board of Trustees, 
is hereby approved. [23-24-179]   

BE IT RESOLVED, the request to Appoint Ms. Marlo Blake as Chief Court Counselor to 
the JCPC, is hereby approved. [23-24-180]   

BE IT RESOLVED, the request to approve Resolution Supporting Application for SRF 
Funding, is hereby approved. [23-24-181]  

RESOLUTION BY GOVERNING BODY OF APPLICANT 

DRAFT M
IN

UTES



 
 

Drinking Water Construction Project Water 
Quality & Treatment Reliability Pamlico 

County Water System 
 
WHEREAS,  The Federal Clean Water Act Amendments of 1987 and the North Carolina the 

Water Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of loans 
and grants to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of construction 
of drinking water treatment works and drinking water distribution system, and 

 
WHEREAS,  The County of Pamlico has need for and intends to conduct a drinking water 

treatment works improvements project as follows: 
• Improvements to treatment process facilities at Grantsboro water treatment 
• plants. 
• Improvements to Vandemere and Millpond water treatment plants. 
• Replace older water supply related and related equipment at Grantsboro 
• water treatment plant. 

WHEREAS, The County of Pamlico intends to request state grant assistance for the project, 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 
COUNTY OF PAMLICO: 

 
That County of Pamlico, the Applicant, will arrange financing for all remaining costs 
of the project, if approved for a State grant award. 
 
That the Applicant will adopt and place into effect on or before completion of the 
project a schedule of fees and charges and other available funds which will 
provide adequate funds for proper operation, maintenance, and administration of 
the system and the repayment of all principal and interest on the debt. 
 
That the Applicant will provide for efficient operation and maintenance of the 
project on completion of construction thereof. 
 
That the governing body of the Applicant agrees to include in the loan agreement 
a provision authorizing the State Treasurer, upon failure of Pamlico County to 
make scheduled repayment of the loan, to withhold from Pamlico County any State 
funds that would otherwise be distributed to the local government unit in an 
amount sufficient to pay all sums then due and payable to the State as a 
repayment of the loan. 
 
That County Manager. the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is 
hereby authorized to execute and file an application on behalf of the Applicant 
with the State of North Carolina for a (loan or grant} to aid in the construction of the 
project described above. 
 
That the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and 
directed to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request 
in connection with such application or the project: to make the assurances as 
contained above; and to execute such other documents as may be required in 

DRAFT M
IN

UTES



 
 

connection with the application. 
 
That the Applicant has substantially complied or will substantially comply with all 
Federal, State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the 
project and to Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto. 

  

Adopted this the 15th day of April, 2024 at Pamlico County Courthouse in Bayboro, North Carolina. 

      *************** 

BE IT RESOLVED, the request for approval of JCPC County Funding Plan of $77,260, is 
hereby approved. [6a.] 

On a motion made by Commissioner Baskervill and seconded by Commissioner Forrest, the following 
resolution was unanimously approved. 

BE IT RESOLVED, the following FY23-24 Budget Amendment(s) are hereby approved. 
[23-24-176] 

 

 

Department: Register of Deeds        #24-116 
__________________________________________________________________ 
    FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 
             
ACCOUNT | ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION                |  AMOUNT (+)              | AMOUNT(-) 
NUMBER       |      |  INCREASED          | DECREASED 
 
104180-532001  Postage        $  75.00 
104180-549100  Dues & Subscriptions      $  50.00 
104180-531000  Travel     $  125.00  
 
Reason for Budget Revision:  Transfer funds to cover shortfalls. 
 

 
Department: Personnel         #24-117 
__________________________________________________________________ 
    FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 
             
ACCOUNT | ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION                |  AMOUNT (+)              | AMOUNT(-) 
NUMBER       |      |  INCREASED          | DECREASED 
 
104121-531000  Travel        $ 2,600.00 
104121-526000  Office Supplies    $ 2,600.00 
 
Reason for Budget Revision:  Transfer funds to cover malfunctioning computer and increase office supplies line for other 
incidental computer expenses and/or additional supplies as needed through end of FY. 
 DRAFT M

IN
UTES



 
 

 

 

 

 

Department: Personnel         #24-118 
__________________________________________________________________ 
    FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 
             
ACCOUNT | ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION                |  AMOUNT (+)              | AMOUNT(-) 
NUMBER       |      |  INCREASED          | DECREASED 
 
104121-512103  Salary Supplement      $ 38,000.00 
104121-518500  Unemployment Insurance   $   2,300.00 
104121-518300  Group Insurance    $ 11,000.00 
104121-518200  Retirement Expense   $ 14,000.00 
104121-518101  Medicare     $   1,700.00 
104121-518100  FICA     $   9,000.00 
 
Reason for Budget Revision:  To cover line overruns. 

Department: Personnel         #24-119 
__________________________________________________________________ 
    FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 
             
ACCOUNT | ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION                |  AMOUNT (+)              | AMOUNT(-) 
NUMBER       |      |  INCREASED          | DECREASED 
 
104121-512103  Salary Supplement      $ 40,00.00 
104320-512200  Jail OT     $ 40,000.00 
 
Reason for Budget Revision:  To cover line overruns. 
 

Department: Emergency Management       #24-120 
__________________________________________________________________ 
    FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 
             
ACCOUNT | ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION                |  AMOUNT (+)              | AMOUNT(-) 
NUMBER       |      |  INCREASED          | DECREASED 
 
104330-521200  Uniforms       $ 500.00 
104330-535200  Maint & Repair-Equipment    $ 500.00 
 
Reason for Budget Revision: To move funds to cover maintenance of the underwater robot. 
 

DRAFT M
IN

UTES



 
 

 

 

Department: Health Department        #24-121 
__________________________________________________________________ 
    FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 
             
ACCOUNT | ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION                |  AMOUNT (+)              | AMOUNT(-) 
NUMBER       |      |  INCREASED          | DECREASED 
 
105167-519900  Contracted Services       $      448.00  
105167-518100  FICA Expense    $      320.00 
105167-518210  401K Employer Contribution   $      120.00  
105167-532000  Telephone    $          8.00 
 
105169-512100  Salaries & Wages        $        80.00 
105169-518200  Retirement Expense   $        80.00 
 
105171-512100  Salaries & Wages       $      800.00 
105171-518100  FICA Expense    $      300.00 
105171-518300  Group Insurance    $      500.00 
  
105110-512100  Salaries & Wages       $ 38,218.00 
105180-529000 MAJ Departmental Supplies      $      800.00 
105180-529005  Safety Supply & Equipment      $      200.00 
105180-537000  Advertising       $      300.00 
105180-538100  Programming       $   1,000.00 
105180-512100  Salaries & Wages    $ 39,800.00 
105180-518101  Medicare  Expense    $      718.00 
 
105180-512100 23MEN Salaries & Wages       $        29.00 
105180-518101 23MEN Medicare Expense    $        29.00 
 
105190-518200  Retirement Expense      $        30.00 
105190-518210  401K Employer Contribution  $        30.00 
    
 
Reason for Budget Revision: To cover line overruns. 

Department: Health Department        #24-122 
__________________________________________________________________ 
    FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 
             
ACCOUNT | ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION                |  AMOUNT (+)              | AMOUNT(-) 
NUMBER       |      |  INCREASED          | DECREASED 
 
100211-435132  LCS/LTech Assist Revenue   $ 50,000.00 
105132-512100  Salaries & Wages    $ 10,000.00 
105132-518100  FICA Expense    $   2,000.00 
105132-518101  Medicare Expense    $   2,000.00 
105132-518200  Retirement Expense   $   3,000.00 
105132-518300  Group  Insurance    $   3,000.00 
105132-519900  Contract Services    $ 20,000.00 
105132-529000  Departmental Supplies   $ 10,000.00 
  
 
Reason for Budget Revision: Funds provided to enhance ability of Health Department to deliver essential services. 
 

DRAFT M
IN

UTES



 
 

 

Department: Health Department        #24-123 
__________________________________________________________________ 
    FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 
             
ACCOUNT | ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION                |  AMOUNT (+)              | AMOUNT(-) 
NUMBER       |      |  INCREASED          | DECREASED 
 
105126-512100  Salaries & Wages       $ 1,225.37 
105126-518100  FICA Expense    $    154.89 
105126-518200  Retirement Expense   $    656.85 
105126-518300  Group Insurance    $    413.63 
 
105151-518101 OS Medicare Expense       $      39.35 
105151-519900 OS Contract Services    $      39.35 
 
105157-512100  Salaries & Wages       $      67.74 
105157-518100  FICA Expense       $      22.26 
105157-518200  Retirement Expense   $      45.00 
105157-518300  Group Insurance    $      45.00 
 
105159-512100  Salaries & Wages       $ 1,600.00 
105159-518300  Group Insurance    $ 1,600.00   
 
105160-512100  Salaries & Wages       $    360.00 
105160-518101  Medicare Expense    $      60.00 
105160-518300  Group Insurance    $    300.00 
 
105113-531000  Travel        $    269.00 
105113-529000  Departmental Supplies   $    269.00 
 
105164-518100  FICA Expense       $      58.00 
105164-518210  401K Employer Contribution  $      58.00    

 
  

Reason for Budget Revision: To cover line overruns. 
 

DRAFT M
IN

UTES



 
 

 

 

 

Department: Field Operations Section, Water Department    #24-124 
__________________________________________________________________ 
    FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 
             
ACCOUNT | ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION                |  AMOUNT (+)              | AMOUNT(-) 
NUMBER       |      |  INCREASED          | DECREASED 
 
307140-531000  Travel        $      71.70 
307140-526000  Office Supplies    $      71.70 
307140-529001 GRT Dept Supplies & Chemical      $  3,546.44 
307140-529001  Dept Supplies & Chemical   $  3,546.44 
307140-533000 MIL Electrical       $  1,000.00 
307140-533000 GRT Electrical    $  1,000.00 
307140-519500  Engineering Services      $    400.00 
307140-533001  Water & Sewer    $    400.00 
307140-519500  Engineering       $      75.00 
307140-533002  Gas and Propane    $      75.00 
307140-519500  Engineering Services      $    200.00 
307140-535100  M&R Grounds    $    200.00   
307140-519500  Engineering Services      $    700.00 
307140-535300  M&R Auto    $    700.00 
307140-512600  Salaries & Wages P/T      $      30.01 
307140-535500  M&R Equipment    $       30.01 
Reason for Budget Revision: To cover shortfalls in other line items. 
 
 
Department: Social Services         #24-125 
__________________________________________________________________ 
    FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 
             
ACCOUNT | ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION                |  AMOUNT (+)              | AMOUNT(-) 
NUMBER       |      |  INCREASED          | DECREASED 
 
100212-435446  Emergency Placement Revenue  $ 9,296.00 
105446-500000  Expense     $ 9,296.00 
 
 
Reason for Budget Revision: New State funding created.  
 
 

Department: Landfill          #24-126 
__________________________________________________________________ 
    FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 
             
ACCOUNT | ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION                |  AMOUNT (+)              | AMOUNT(-) 
NUMBER       |      |  INCREASED          | DECREASED 
 
106120-529000  Departmental Supplies      $ 2,000.00 
106120-535100  M&R Grounds       $ 3,000.00 
106120-535200  Maint & Repair-Equipment      $ 1,200.00 
104721-535200  Maint & Repair-Equipment      $ 1,200.00 
104722-535100  M&R Grounds    $ 7,400.00 
 
 
Reason for Budget Revision: To cover shortfalls in other line items. 
 

DRAFT M
IN

UTES



 
 

 

 

 

On a motion made by Commissioner Prescott and seconded by Commissioner Riggs, the following 
resolution was approved by a vote if 5:1 (Nay: Commissioner Baskervill).  

BE IT RESOLVED, the request for approval to Upgrade Body/Car Camera System for 
$29,000 for the Sheriff’s Department, is hereby approved. [23-24-178]   

The Board then turned their attention to the Correspondence Agenda. 

On a motion made by Commissioner Brinson and seconded by Commissioner Prescott, the following 
resolution was unanimously approved.  

 BE IT RESOLVED, the request for approval to Release GAP Bill for Jesse Adams in the 

Department: Board of Elections        #24-127 
__________________________________________________________________ 
    FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 
             
ACCOUNT | ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION                |  AMOUNT (+)              | AMOUNT(-) 
NUMBER       |      |  INCREASED          | DECREASED 
 
104170-512100  Salaries and Wages      $ 600.00 
104170-537000  Advertising    $ 600.00 
 
 
Reason for Budget Revision: To cover costs associated with Second Primary Notice and advertising for an office position. 
 
 
Department: Board of Elections        #24-128 
__________________________________________________________________ 
    FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 
             
ACCOUNT | ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION                |  AMOUNT (+)              | AMOUNT(-) 
NUMBER       |      |  INCREASED          | DECREASED 
 
104170-512100  Salaries and Wages      $ 7,000.00 
104170-529000  Departmental Supplies   $ 7,000.00 
 
 
Reason for Budget Revision: To replace old voting booths with new multi booth stations. 
 

Department: Board of Elections        #24-129 
__________________________________________________________________ 
    FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 
             
ACCOUNT | ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION                |  AMOUNT (+)              | AMOUNT(-) 
NUMBER       |      |  INCREASED          | DECREASED 
 
104170-512100  Salaries and Wages      $ 1,500.00 
104170-534000  Printing & Binding   $ 1,500.00 
 
Reason for Budget Revision: To cover costs associated with Second Primary ballot printing. 
 

DRAFT M
IN

UTES



 
 

amount of $170.33 for a 2020 Chrysler Van, is hereby denied. [23-24-182]  

On a motion made by Commissioner Baskervill and seconded by Commissioner Ollison, the following 
resolution was unanimously approved. 

 BE IT RESOLVED, the request to approve Town of Vandemere’s request for Enforcement 
of Pamlico County Dangerous Animal Ordinance within the Town, is hereby approved. [23-24-183] 

JOINT RESOLUTION 
of 

PAMLICO COUNTY 
and 

TOWN OF VANDEMERE 
 

 
WHEREAS, Pamlico County (“County”) has adopted the Pamlico County Dangerous Animal 

Ordinance (“Ordinance”), applicable within the unincorporated areas of Pamlico County; and  
 
WHEREAS, Section 153A-122(b) of the North Carolina General Statutes provides that a county 

ordinance may, upon resolution, be applicable within an incorporated municipality; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Vandemere (“Town”) desires that the Ordinance be applicable within 

the corporate limits of the Town, and to be administered and otherwise enforced by the County within 
the Town. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the parties as follows: 
 

1. The Ordinance shall be applicable within the Town upon the adoption of this Resolution 
by the last party to execute the same. 

 
2. Once effective within the Town, the County shall administer and otherwise enforce the 

Ordinance within the Town. 
 

3. This Resolution may subsequently be withdrawn and rescinded by either party upon thirty 
(30) days’ advance written notice to the other; and thereafter, the Ordinance shall cease 
to have application within the Town. 

 
 
Adopted this ____ day of _________, 2024 by the Town of Vandemere. 
 

 
TOWN OF VANDEMERE 

 
(Town Seal) 
      __________________________ 
      Sandra A. Snipes, Mayor 
 
Attest:  
 
 

DRAFT M
IN

UTES



 
 

_____________________________ 
Sue Britt, Town Clerk 
 
 

Adopted this 15th day of  April, 2024 by Pamlico County. 
 
 
 

      PAMLICO COUNTY 
 
(County Seal) 
      _________________________________ 
      Candy Bohmert, Chair 
 
Attest: 
 
  
______________________________ 
Tracy Boyd, Clerk 
       *************** 
 

On a motion made by Commissioner Baskervill and seconded by Commissioner Riggs, the following 
resolution was unanimously approved. 

 BE IT RESOLVED, the approval of Project Ordinance for Kershaw Water Treatment 
Plant Project, is hereby approved. [23-24-184] 

CAPITAL PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE 
Grantsboro/ Kershaw WTP Improvements 

Be it ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the Pamlico County, North Carolina, that pursuant to section 
13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following capital Project Ordinance is 
hereby adopted: 
Section 1: The Project authorized is the construction/rehabilitation of a water treatment facility to be 
financed by a Drinking Water State Revolving Fund loan with principal forgiveness and a S.L. 2023-134 
appropriation of State Reserve Funds. 
Section 2: The officers of this unit are hereby directed to proceed with the capital project within the 
terms of the board resolution, loan documents and the budget contained herein. 
Section 3: The following amounts are appropriated for the project : 
 
Project Expenses                 Total Amount                                Eligible Amount 
 
Construction Contract                     $5,395,000                                            $5,395,000 
Contingency                                       $540,000                                               $540,000 
Technical Services 
(Planning & Design) *                           212,000                                               $212,000 
Technical Services 
(Construction Phase)*                        $188,000                                               $188,000 
Permitting*                                              $5,000                                                   $5,000 
Closing Costs                                       $59,542 
 
Totals                                        $6,399,542                                      $ 6,340,000** 
 
*Subject to further review** Current Funding Offer is $3,747,000 in DWSRF funds. The County has 

DRAFT M
IN

UTES



 
 

indicated in the Request For Funding for S.L. 2023-134 that the funding to be utilized will be $ 2,977,100 in 
DWSRF funds and $3,362,900 in State Reserve funds from S.L. 2023-134. 
 
Section 4: The following revenues are anticipated to be available to complete this project: 
 
Funding Source                                                          Amount 
WIF- 2005 DWSRF                                                $2,977,100.00 
S.L. 2023-134 State Reserve 
Fund                                                                       $3,362,900.00 
Local Funds-Closing Costs                                         $59,542.00 
Total Project Funds                                              $6,399,542.00 
 
Section 5: The finance officer is hereby directed to maintain within the capital project fund sufficient 
specific detailed accounting records to satisfy the requirements of the grantor agency, the grant 
agreements, and federal regulations. The terms of the resolution also shall be met. 
 
Section 6: Funds may be advanced from the General Fund for the purpose of making payments as due. 
Disbursement requests should be made to the grantor agency in an orderly and timely manner. 
 
Section 7: The finance officer is directed to report, on a quarterly basis, on the financial status of each 
project element in section 3 and on the total grant/loan revenues received or claimed. 
 
Section 8: The Budget Officer is directed to include a detailed analysis of past and future costs and 
revenues on this capital project in every budget submission made to this board. 
 
Section 9: Copies of this capital project ordinance shall be furnished to the clerk to the Governing Board, 
and to the Budget Officer and the Finance officer for direction in carrying out this project. 
 
Duly adopted this   ___15th___    day of April, 2024 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Signature, Candy Bohmert, Chairman 
 
 
 
(Seal) 
 
Attest:  ___________________________                                            
             Signature, Tracy Boyd, Clerk to the Board  
 

On a motion made by Commissioner Brinson and seconded by Commissioner Baskervill, the following 
resolution was unanimously approved. 

 BE IT RESOLVED, the request to select Oakley Collier Architect to Implement 
Recommendations of Pamlico County Space Planning and Feasibility Study, is hereby approved. 
[23-24-185] 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the County Manager is authorized with the firm,  to 
negotiate a price for the scope of work and to develop contract documents. 

On a motion made by Commissioner Ollison and seconded by Commissioner Riggs, the following 
resolution was unanimously approved. 

 BE IT RESOLVED, the request for approval of Amended Plat – Cutter Bay Subdivision, 
is hereby approved. [23-24-186] 

DRAFT M
IN

UTES



 
 

On a motion made by Commissioner Baskervill and seconded by Commissioner Ollison, the following 
resolution was unanimously approved. 

Chairman Bohmert invited Health Director Melanie Campen to present the Health Department’s 
Quarterly Report (attached) [22-23-187]. 
 
On a motion made by Commissioner Brinson seconded by Commissioner Bohmert, and unanimously 
approved, the Board went into Closed Session for discussion of Health Director Performance Review  
[N.C.G.S. § 143-318.11(a)(6)].  Time Recorded: 8:19pm 

No action was taken in Closed Session. 

On a motion made by Commissioner Brinson, seconded by Commissioner Riggs, and unanimously 
approved, the Board went back into Open Session.  Time Recorded: 8:33pm 

There being no further business, on a motion made by Commissioner Prescott and seconded by 
Commissioner Brinson, the Board recessed until the Budget Meeting on Tuesday, April 23, 2024 at 
9:00am. The next regular meeting will be on Monday, May 6, 2024 at 7:00pm. Time Recorded: 8:45pm. 

 
______________________________________ 

Chairman     
 

 
______________________________________ 
  Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 

DRAFT M
IN

UTES



BUDGET MEETING MINUTES OF THE 
PAMLICO COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, APRIL 23, 2024 

The Pamlico County Board of Commissioners held a Budget Meeting on Tuesday, April 23, 2024 at 
9:00am in the Patsy H. Sadler room of the Pamlico County Courthouse.  Commissioners Missy 
Baskervill, Candy Bohmert, Kari Forrest, Pat Prescott, and Ed Riggs were present.  Commissioner Doug 
Brinson and Carl Ollison arrived a few minutes after the start of the meeting.  Also present were County 
Manager Tim Buck, Finance Director Bill Fentress, Personnel Director Chantelle Allison and Clerk to 
the Board Tracy Boyd. This meeting was open to the public, and proper notice was given. 

Chairman Bohmert called the meeting back to order at 9:03am (recessed from the Regular 
Commissioner’s meeting on April 15, 2024). 

The purpose of the meeting was: 

1. Approve Architect
2. Review current year (23-24) budget and projections
3. FY 24-25 General Fund Budget
4. FY 24-25 Water Fund Budget
5. Salary Study
6. General Discussion
7. Department by department line item review

The board discussed and reviewed the architect (Oakely Collier) Master Agreement and  Service Order. 

On a motion made by Commissioner Baskervill and seconded by Commissioner Prescott,  the following 
resolution was unanimously approved. 

BE IT RESOLVED, the request for approval of the Oakley Collier Architects to implement 
and design Phase 1B (EOC/Dispatch) of Pamlico County Space Study in the amount of $2,640,000 
and  authorize Chairman and or staff to sign all necessary contract documents, is hereby 
approved.

County Manager Tim Buck and Finance Officer Bill Fentress provided updates on the current year-end 
(FY 23-24) General Fund and financial projections.  Board/manager discussion included: revenue 
predictions for the upcoming fiscal year (FY 24-25), the different departments’ capital item lists, new 
position requests, increases to their general operating expenses, and proposed budget cuts in order to 
balance the budget.  The same discussion process was repeated for departments that are separate from 
the General Fund, ie: Water Department, Fire Department, and Rescue/Ambulance Service. 

Commissioner Carl Ollison left at 10:33. 

Chairman Bohmert then invited Personnel Director Chantelle Allison to discuss the Salary Study. 

Personnel Director Chantelle Allison discussed and compared the current job openings from surrounding 
counties  to see how current market hire rates compare to Pamlico County, COLA options, and Merit 

DRAFT M
IN

UTES



options.  

There being no further business, on a motion made by Commissioner Baskervill and seconded by 
Commissioner Prescott, the Board recessed and will continue this Budget Meeting on Friday, May 3, 
2024 at the Pamlico County Schools Central Office Board Room, 507 Anderson Drive, Bayboro, NC 
28515 at  9:00am. The next regular meeting will be on Monday, May 6, 2024 at 7:00pm. Time recorded: 
12:36pm 

______________________________________ 
Chairman 

______________________________________ 
Clerk to the Board 

DRAFT M
IN

UTES



BUDGET AMENDMENTS

Tab 1

callison
Highlight

callison
Cross-Out



tboyd
Highlight





tboyd
Highlight







tboyd
Highlight







tboyd
Highlight







tboyd
Highlight





tboyd
Highlight







tboyd
Highlight





BOARD RELEASES

Tab 2





BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 

KARI FORREST - AT LARGE 
PAT PRESCOTT - TOWNSHIP #1 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. – TOWNSHIP #3 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 
MISSY BASKERVILL - TOWNSHIP #5

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
TIMOTHY A. BUCK 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

May 2, 2024 

TO:  Chair Bohmert and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 
FROM:   Tim Buck, County Manager 
RE: Permission to Advertise Outstanding 2023 Taxes 

See attached memo from Tax Administrator Lauren Murray.  I am requesting that the 
Board issue an order to advertise the liens according to the statute. 

Tab 3









BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 

KARI FORREST - AT LARGE 
PAT PRESCOTT - TOWNSHIP #1 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. – TOWNSHIP #3 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 
MISSY BASKERVILL - TOWNSHIP #5

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
TIMOTHY A. BUCK 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

May 2, 2024 

TO:  Chair Bohmert and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 
FROM:   Tim Buck, County Manager 
RE:     Request to Approve Carr Riggs and Ingram Contract 

    2024 Audit 

Reference the attached memorandum from Assistant County Manager Bill Fentress 
requesting to enter into contract with Carr Riggs Ingram for 2024 Audit Services.  I am 
recommending and requesting approval. 

Tab 4



PAMLICO COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER AND PROVIDER 

TO:       Tim Buck 
From:   Bill Fentress 
RE:       2024 Carr Riggs Ingram Audit Contract 
Date:    May 6, 2024 
 
Tim, I have attached the proposed 2024 Audit Contract from CRI, peer review, and Letter to the Board 
from CRI.  There are a few language changes in 2024. While the language is different due to these 
changes, the contract is substantially similar to last year’s contract. The contract amount is $4600 
more than the contract for the 2023 Audit; however, there is some additional work required due to our 
many grants and the new school project.  
 
 
I am recommending approval of this contract for 2024. CRI has been exemplary in its service to 
Pamlico County . The firm and its primary auditors are always available for assistance to Finance 
Staff, while at the same time maintaining professional objectivity. I could not ask for a better 
professional and working relationship with an auditor.  
 
Bill 
 
 
 
 



��������������	
������������������ ��������������������� !�� !���"�
#$%&'$(�)*+,$-&,-.�/-%.0�.*1,.2,$�3%.2�4#5/�6%7�'889%:';9,<0�2,$,%-'7.,$�$,7,$$,=�.*�'>�)*+,$-&,-.'9�/-%.6><�?@!AB�"�C�D��?@!AB�"�?!!"�EE�F,$,%-'7.,$�$,7,$$,=�.*�'>�GH=%.*$���"�IJ��K"����E���LL�MEN� OH>.�;,�3%.2%-�7*H$�&*-.2>�*7�PQR�ST ����?@!AB�"�E��LL��@!AB��LL�EB�B�D� BE�� !�!AEUL�E@"�E�"�V@A"�!�IJ�WXYX�K� �"�LLJ��UU�ZB�!��@!ABA KEB� !�"!E�[\??Y]�� !��!!ABA� �L�"�V@A"�!�L�K�L�EB�B�D� BE�� !�!AEUL�E@"�E�����LL��@ !E�� !̂�"�!A_AEA� E����B��\�_�" D� B�L�W AB[E]X����� � ̀D�a�"�U�DIA A Kb�� !�A !A_A!@�L��@ !�EB�B�D� BE�� !�EU��!@L�E�E��LL�I�E@Ia�UB�!�B��B����@!ABA K�Z"�U�!@"�E��ZZLA�!�A �B����@!AB����B���I�EAU��A � UA�L�EB�B�D� BE�� !�� ��ZA A� �E��LLI��"� !�"�!�A �"�L�BA� �B��[�E��ZZLAU�IL�]�B���K�_�" D� B�L��UBA_ABA�Eb�B���I@EA �EÈ�BJZ���UBA_ABA�Eb�B����KK"�K�B�cdeWEb���U��D�a�"�K�_�" D� B�L�� !�� B�"Z"AE���@ !b�� !�B����KK"�K�B��"�D�A A K��@ !�A ��"D�BA� �[ � ̀D�a�"�K�_�" D� B�� !�� B�"Z"AE���@ !Eb�B���A B�" �L�E�"_AU���@ !�BJZ�b�� !�B����A!@UA�"J��@ !�BJZ�E]X�fgh�ijklmnlojomljp�kqjqhrhoqk�kgjpp�lompsth�istuhqjvw�mxryjvlkxo�lonxvrjqlxo�lo�j�istuhqjvw�mxryjvlkxo�kqjqhrhoqzvjqghv�qgjo�jk�{|}z�nxv�qgh�~hohvjp��sot�jot�jow�joosjppw�istuhqht�|yhmljp�{h�hosh�nsotk��T ?B���DA AD@Db�B���?@!AB�"�E��LL�U� !@UB�qgh��@!AB�� !�"� !�"�����"�Z�"B�A ��UU�"!� U��MAB��\??YX����?@!AB�"�E��LL�Z�"��"D�B����@!AB�A ��UU�"!� U��MAB��)*+,$-&,-.�GH=%.%-1��.'-='$=>���������A��qgh~x�hvorhoqjp��olq�h�yhotht�����z����xv�rxvh�lo�mxriloht��hthvjp�jot�|qjqh�nlojomljp�jkklkqjomh�tsvlou�qghvhyxvqlou�yhvlxtX�fgh�jstlqxv�kgjpp�yhvnxvr�j�|louph��stlq�ln�vh�slvht�iw�flqph����|��xth�xn��hthvjp�{huspjqlxok�jvq�����/-%7*$&�G=&%-%>.$'.%*-��,�H%$,&,-.>0�5*>.�#$%-:%89,>0�'-=�GH=%.��,�H%$,&,-.>�7*$�P,=,$'9�G3'$=>�����������[W A��"D�\@A!� U�]�xv�B���YB�B��YA KL��?@!AB� DZL�D� B�BA� �?UB����AE��@!AB�� !��LL��EE�UA�B�!��@!AB!�U@D� B�BA� �D�J�I��E@Ia�UB�B��"�_A�M�IJ�¡�!�"�L�� !�YB�B���K� UA�E�A ��UU�"!� U��MAB��¡�!�"�L�� !�YB�B�L�MEb�A UL@!A K�B���EB���E����B���¢��AU�����YB�B��?@!AB�"�[¢Y?]�� !�B���£�U�L�\�_�" D� B�e�DDAEEA� �[£\e]X� �B����@!AB�"�V@A"�E�����!�"�L�EA KL���@!AB�lo�jmmxvtjomh�¤lqg�B���W A��"D�\@A!� U��[¥¦§§Ẍ§©]b�AB�AE"�U�DD� !�!�B��B�B���?@!AB�"�� !�\�_�" D� B�L�W AB[E]�a�A BLJ��K"��b�A ��!_� U�����B����ª�U@BA� ����B�AEU� B"�UBb�M�AU��Z�"BJ�AE�"�EZ� EAIL����"�E@IDAEEA� ����B����@!AB�� !�B����UU�DZ� JA K�!�B��U�LL�UBA� ���"D�B�B���¡�!�"�L�?@!AB�eL��"A K��@E���E�"�V@A"�!�@ !�"�B���W A��"D�\@A!� U��[¥¦§§Ẍ©¦]X«¬¬®̄°±�¬²³�́µ¶°̄·�²¬�¬°·®́ �̧¹́º»�¼½°¾¾°¾½�¿À�¿Á�́¬̄³�Âµ¾�ÃÄÅ�ÆÄÆÃÅ�̄Ç�ÈÉÊ�Ë°̧̧�̧́ ²̧Ì�́µ¶°̄²³·�̄²�®²¾·°¶³�ÌÇÍ̄Ç³�́�µ¾°̄�Îµ́ °̧¬°·�́·�́�Ï̄´̄�̧²ÌÐ³°·Ñ�́µ¶°̄�¼́·¶�µÒ²¾�¬¶³́�̧®³°̄³°́�°¾�̄Ç�Ó¾ÔÕÖº×�Éµ°¶́¾®ØÆÄÄÙÚÆÄÛ́ÜÅ�́¾¶�Û¼Ü�̄Ç³²µ½Ç�ÛÜ�́·�°̄�́ÒÒ̧°·�̄²�Ï̄´̄�́Ì́ ³¶·Ý�Þß�àááÔâÔÖß�âÖ�âãÍ�ÕÍáÍºàä�åºÔâÍºÔà�Ôß�âãÍ�æßÔÕÖºçèéÔáàßåÍê�àéáÔâ»�çé»â�ãàëÍ�ìÍÍß�»éìçÔââÍá�âÔçÍäí�âÖ�âãÍ�îèïÝ�ÞÕ�Ôß�ðãÍ�ºÍñÖºâÔßò�íÍàºê�Öº�Ôß�ÍÔâãÍº�ÖÕ�âãÍ�âóÖñºÍëÔÖé»�íÍàº»ô�âãÍ�éßÔâ�ºÍñÖºâÍá�à�õÔßàßåÔàä��ÍºÕÖºçàßåÍ�ÞßáÔåàâÖº�ÖÕ�ïÖßåÍºß�âãàâ�âãÍ�àéáÔâ�óà»�äàâÍê�âãÍßd�K��©

\�_�" A K����"!�d"AD�"J�\�_�" D� B�W AB�cAEU"�B�LJ�d"�E� B�!�e�DZ� � B�W AB�[cdeW]�[A���ZZLAU�IL�]�
¡AEU�L����"�� !A K� ���	�
����������	��������	���������
���� ��!�"�##$%%$�&'�%�(�#)$*��"�+&,-�./0"���1�2$33%�4�5&3��#1�(67676"6(686���9�:;<=�.'>��'�&1�."�?@;ABCA/BC/?< :C/B:/?<



��������������	
������������������ ��������������� �������� ! "�!#�$� �%&!��$� '�(����)'&*'��� �'����' +�%�,'-�%�&�� ��#�$��!��$�("� +��,%'.*��.$! # ��$�%$#/� +���� ! "0#��.$! '%�#+�11�&�2����,''$���! +����'% � '�)'&*1"�!���� !&�1"�&����%�3! +� +��%�4.�# #�'� +��,%'.*��.$! '%�!���))'%$��)��3! +�5678�98::;<=�7�98::;<>;?� @+!#�)'� %�) �)'� �&*1� �#����.�&'$!�!�$�'*!�!'��(�!�,�%��$�%�$;����$.%!�,� +��*%')�##�'��)'�$.) !�, +���.$! /� +��5.$! '%�$� �%&!��#� +� �! �3!11��' �(��*'##!(1�� '�%��$�%����.�&'$!�!�$�'*!�!'��'�� +���!���)!�1# � �&�� #�'�� +��.�! /� +��5.$! '%�#+�11�)'� �) � +��ABC�D ���� '�$!#).##� +��)!%).&# ��)�#�1��$!�,� '� +� )'�)1.#!'���#�#''���#�!#�*%�) !)�1���$�(��'%�� +���!��1�%�*'% �!#�!##.�$;�@+���.$! �#+�11�!�)1.$��#.)+� �# #�'�� +��))'.� !�,�%�)'%$#���$�#.)+�' +�%��.$! !�,�*%')�$.%�#��#��%��)'�#!$�%�$�("� +��5.$! '%� '�(����)�##�%"�!�� +�)!%).&# ��)�#;�5�"�1!&! � !'�#�'%�%�# %!) !'�#�!��#)'*��3+!)+�3'.1$�1��$� '���4.�1!�!)� !'��#+'.1$�(���.11"�E*1�!��$�!������  �)+&�� � '� +!#�)'� %�) ;F� ��� +!#��.$! ���,�,�&�� �!#�#.(G�) � '� +��# ��$�%$#��'%��.$! ��#�$��!��$�!��HIJKLMNKMO�PQRSOSMTUOVMRVLRW/�>:=X�%�-!#!'�/�!##.�$�("� +��C'&* %'11�%�B���%�1�'�� +��6�! �$�Y � �#/� +���("��))�* !�,� +!#��,�,�&�� /� +��5.$! '%�3�%%�� #� +� �+�Z#+��+�#�&� � +��%�4.!%�&�� #��'%���*��%�%�-!�3���$�)'� !�.!�,�$.)� !'���#�#*�)!�!�$�!��HIJKLMNKMO�PQRSOSMT�UOVMRVLRW;�@+��5.$! '%��,%��#� '�*%'-!$����)'*"�'�� +��&'# %�)�� �*��%�%�-!�3�%�*'% � '� +��B'-�%�&�� �1�6�! [#\���$� +��Y�)%� �%"�'�� +��ABC�*%!'%� '� +���E�). !'��'�����.$! �)'� %�) ;�Y.(#�4.�� �#.(&!##!'�#�'�� +��%�*'% ��%��%�4.!%�$�'�1"�.*'��%�*'% ��E*!%� !'��'%�.*'���.$! '%0#%�)�!* �'�����.*$� �$�*��%�%�-!�3�%�*'% ;���� +���.$! ��!%&�%�)�!-�$���*��%�%�-!�3�%� !�,�' +�%� +���*�##/� +�5.$! '%�#+�11��' �)'� %�) �3! +� +��B'-�%�&�� �1�6�! [#\�3! +'. ��!%# �)'� �) !�,� +��Y�)%� �%"�'�� +��ABC��'%��*��%�%�-!�3����1"#!#� +� �&�"�%�#.1 �!���$$! !'��1�)'� %�) .�1�%�4.!%�&�� #;��� +���.$! ���,�,�&�� �!#��' �#.(G�) � '�HIJKLMNKMO�P]̂_̀_ab�UOVMRVLRW�'%�!���!���)!�1�# � �&�� #��%���' �*%�*�%�$�!���))'%$��)��3! +�6;Y;�,���%�11"��))�* �$��))'.� !�,�*%!�)!*1�#�[B55c\���$���!1� '�!�)1.$���11�$!#)1'#.%�#�%�4.!%�$�("�B55c/� +��5.$! '%�#+�11�*%'-!$������E*1��� !'���#� '�3+"�!������  �)+&�� � '� +!#�)'� %�) �'%�!������&��$&�� ;�de � �!#��,%��$� +� � !&��!#�'�� +���##��)��!�� +!#�)'� %�) ;�511��.$! #��%�� '�(��*�%�'%&�$���$� +��%�*'% �'��.$! �#.(&!  �$� '�ABC�fg����3! +!���'.%�&'� +#�'���!#)�1�"��%���$;����! �(�)'&�#���)�##�%"� '��&��$� +h�ijklmnhh�op�mqh�kimh�mqim�mqh�ijklm�phropm�sltt�uh�vjuwlmmhk�mo�mqh�xyz/�����&��$�$�)'� %�) ��1'�,�3! +���3%!  ���E*1��� !'��'�� +��{|}~���#+�11�(��#.(&!  �$� '� +��Y�)%� �%"�'�� +��ABC��'%��**%'-�1;�e ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ��������������������������¡������������������¢�������������������������������������������������������������¢������������������£����������������������¤������������¢�������������������������������������������������¥�¦��������������������������������������������������������§����������������������������������������¡������̈������©ª�«¬��������®̄°±®�±²³́µ¶¶·³̧¹º�»¼¹̧½¹²½¶�¾°º¹²·́·µ½¿¥�¦���������������������������������������������������������������������À�ª¥ÁÂÃ�ÄÅÅÆ�ÂÃ�ÇÈÉÊËÌÍÊÌÎ�ÏÐÑÒÎÒÌÓ�ÔÎÕÌÑÕËÑÖ�×ØÙÚÛÜÝ�ÚÞ�×ß�×ØÙÚÛÂÃ�ÚÜÜØàÜ�×ß�Åáâã�äåæç�ÃàèÂÃÛÝ�éÂêêÂßëì�ÃàÞàÃÃàÙ�ÛÂ�×Ü�íÄÂîàÃß×ßéà�ïàÛÛàÃÝð�ïÄã�ÜÛ×ÞÞ�ñòóô�õòö�Ãà�ØÚÃà�Û�à�ÃàèÂÃÛ�ÛÂ��à�ÜØ�êÚÛÛàÙ�ØßëàÜÜ�Û�à�×ØÙÚÛÂÃ�éÚÛàÜ�ÜÚ�ßÚÞÚé×ßÛ�ÞÚßÙÚß�Ü�ÂÃ�ÚÜÜØàÜ�ÞÃÂê�Û�à�×ØÙÚÛÝ�×Ü�ÙàÞÚßàÙ�Úß�Åáâã�äåæç��å�â��������ÚÜ�	ÂØëÙ�ÚßéëØÙà�ÚÜÜØàÜ�ÜØé��×Ü�ÙÚÞÞÚéØëÛÚàÜ�àßéÂØßÛàÃàÙ�ÙØÃÚß��Û�à�×ØÙÚÛÝ�ÜÚ�ßÚÞÚé×ßÛ�ÂÃ�ØßØÜØ×ë�ÛÃ×ßÜ×éÛÚÂßÜÝ�ØßéÂÃÃàéÛàÙ�êÚÜÜÛ×ÛàêàßÛÜÝ�ê×ÛÛàÃÜ�Û�×Û�×Ãà�ÙÚÞÞÚéØëÛ�ÂÃ�éÂßÛàßÛÚÂØÜ�ÃàîÚà	àÙ�	ÚÛ��Û�ÂÜà�é�×Ã�àÙ�	ÚÛ���ÂîàÃß×ßéàÝ�×ßÙ�ÂÛ�àÃ�ÜÚ�ßÚÞÚé×ßÛ�ê×ÛÛàÃÜ�
����ööó�ô��ñóõö���óñ�ñ���õ��ö�ó���ñ�ö��ó�ó��ó����óñ�öò��ó��ó�ò�öóñ��ô�ñóô����óñ��õ���������� !"��!"#��õñ��ó�ó��ò�õ���öóñ��õ���óö�òñ�òö�ó��ö��õ��õ���������� �$óööó�%�ö�ó����ööóõ�ñò��óõö�ö�òõ��ôö��ó�ô���öö&'(

)*+
,-./,0
123
4/0
3567800-9
08:-;<
=/,
>020-
;/1?,83@
25980--
302053A
B;-23-
,-=-,
0/
CD83E5338/4
/F
>84G;-
H59803
84
I/,0J
K2,/;842C
/4
0J-
LMKN3
1-O380-
=/,
7/,-
84=/,7208/4A
PQ
RST
UVWXR
UYW
ZVWXR[\
][̂ V̂YX]URX[Y
U\T
Q[VYW
XY
RSX_
\T̀XTa
R[
bT
_Vb_RUYWU\Wc
RST
\T_VdR_
[Q
RST
\T̀XTa
Ûe
bT
Q[\aU\WTW
R[
RST
f[\RS
gU\[dXYU
hRURT
i[U\W
[Q
gjZ
klÛ XYT\_
mfg
hRURT
i[U\Wno



��������������	
������������������ ��������������� ���������� �!"#$%"$&��$'�()*�+���)&,�#+&-���$&#��&.�/�#��)'+&��#��)'+&0#"��&"'�1�#2�#"3)+#"�&,"�((#�!����/�&,"�4"�#"&�#-��/�&,"�5678�9,+.�+$��)'".��$$)����#�.("�+����)'+&.:�� #""'�)(�$�(#��"')#".#"��&"'�&��+$&"#$�����$&#��.:�*��22""(+$ ��#��&,"#��..+.&�$�"�$"�"..�#-�&��(#"(�#"�&,"�6�!"#$%"$&���;$+<=>?"��#'.�/�#��)'+&:�/+$�$�+���.&�&"%"$&�(#"(�#�&+�$:��$-�/+$�$�"0#"��&"'�+$!".&+ �&+�$.:��#��$-��&,"#��)'+&0�#"��&"'1�#2�+$�&,"�4&�&"��/�@�#&,�7�#��+$�8�ABB?CDEF�G>�EF>C�?HIJG?HK�LC?�<MH�AF<H?NE<OPH�QCRBFGENSH�TUERGNE<GCNTNVEVHRHN<�LC?�EJKG<GNV�<MH�QC?CNEDG?J>�W<E<H�ENK�XCSEF�YG>SEF�ZHSCDH?[�YJNK>HUBHNKG<J?H>�E>�EFFC\HK�][�̂W�_?HE>J?[̀��((#�!���+.�$�&�#"3)+#"'��$�EJKG<���$&#��&.��$'�+$!�+�".�/�#.-.&"%�+%(#�!"%"$&.��$'�.+%+��#�."#!+�".��/���$�$0�)'+&+$ �$�&)#"̀a� bcdefghi�jek�ihkdfghi�khclhkhl�mclhk�nohih�gecnkpgni�iopqq�cen�rh�spfl�rt�noh�uedhkcvhcnpq�wcfnxiy�mcnfqnoh�fcdefgh�opi�rhhc�psskedhl�rt�noh�zhgkhnpkt�ej�noh�{u|}�~ofi�pqie�fcgqmlhi�pct��������������������������������������������������������������������������� ����������¡���������¢£¤����¡������� ����������¥���� ��¦������������������ ����������¡������§��������§���� ���������������� �������������������� ������������������������ ��������¡������̈���©�ª�������¥¡�����« ����������� ��������������������������������������������� ���������¬� ®�������������������� �������������¥�������¡��������� ����������������� �����������̄�� ��������¡������̈��©�ª�� ������¥����� ���������̄����������������¥�� ����������¥����� ��¦��������°�����̄�� �����̄�� �� �����������¥�������� ����������¡�¥����������¡���������������������������������¥��� ���°�����¥�����������������¡��°�������¥�� ������������©����������������������±�������������� ��²³́µ¶·̧́ �¹º�¹±»́º�¹º³²µ·¼²±·¹µ̧½²̧�º́¾¿·º́À�¿µÀ́º�±»́�Á́À́º²Â�²µÀ�Ã±²±́�Ã·µ³Ấ�Ä¿À·±�Ä¶±̧Å�Æ»·̧�À¹́ �̧µ¹±�·µ¶Â¿À́�Ḉ́ �̧Ç¹º�²µÈ�Éº́Ê·̧̧¿²µ¶́º́Ë·́Ì̧�±»²±�Í²È�Î́�º́¾¿·º́À�ÎÈ�±»́�ÏÐ�Ä̧ ¹̧¶·²±·¹µ�¹Ç�ÐÑÄ̧�ÒÏÐÄÐÑÄ½�Ñ́ º́�Ó́ Ë·́Ì�Ð¹ÍÍ·±±́́ �¹º�ÏÐ�Ã±²±́Ô¹²ºÀ�¹Ç�ÐÑÄ�ÕÖ²Í·µ́º̧�Ò̧́ �́×±́Í�ØÙ½Å¬¬� ×Ç�±»́�Ú¹Ë́ºµÍ́ µ±²Â�Ûµ·±Ò̧½�»²̧Ü»²Ë́�¹¿±̧±²µÀ·µ³�º́Ë́µ¿́�Î¹µÀ̧Ý�±»́�Ä¿À·±¹º�̧»²ÂÂ�̧¿ÎÍ·±�±¹�ÞÚÐ�ß±²ÇÇÝ·́±»́º�·µ�±»́�µ¹±̧́ �±¹�±»́�²¿À·±́À�Ç·µ²µ¶·²Â�̧±²±́Í́ µ±̧�¹º�²̧�²�̧́ É²º²±́�º́É¹º±Ý�²�¶²Â¶¿Â²±·¹µ�À́Í¹µ̧±º²±·µ³¶¹ÍÉÂ·²µ¶́�Ì·±»�±»́�º́Ë́µ¿́�Î¹µÀ�º²±́�¶¹Ë́µ²µ±Å�ÄÀÀ·±·¹µ²ÂÂÈÝ�±»́�Ä¿À·±¹º�̧»²ÂÂ�̧¿ÎÍ·±�±¹�ÞÚÐ�à±²ÇÇ·̧Í¿Â±²µ́¹¿̧ÂÈ�Ì·±»�±»́�Ú¹Ë́ºµÍ́ µ±²Â�Ûµ·±á̧�ÒÛµ·±̧á½�²¿À·±́À�Ç·µ²µ¶·²Â�̧±²±́Í́ µ±̧�²µÈ�¹±»́º�Î¹µÀ�¶¹ÍÉÂ·²µ¶́±̧²±́Í́ µ±̧�¹º�²ÀÀ·±·¹µ²Â�º́É¹º±̧�º́¾¿·º́À�ÎÈ�±»́�²¿±»¹º·¼·µ³�Î¹µÀ�À¹¶¿Í́ µ±̧Ý�¿µẤ̧ �̧¹±»́ºÌ·̧́ �̧É́¶·Ç·́À�·µ�±»́Î¹µÀ�À¹¶¿Í́ µ±̧Å¬â� ÄÇ±́º�¶¹ÍÉẤ±·µ³�±»́�²¿À·±Ý�±»́�Ä¿À·±¹º�̧»²ÂÂ�̧¿ÎÍ·±�±¹�±»́�Ú¹Ë́ºµ·µ³�Ô¹²ºÀ�²�Ìº·±±́µ�º́É¹º±�¹Ç�²¿À·±Å�Æ»·̧º́É¹º±�̧»²ÂÂ�·µ¶Â¿À́Ý�Î¿±�µ¹±�Î́�Â·Í·±́À�±¹Ý�±»́�Ç¹ÂÂ¹Ì·µ³�·µÇ¹ºÍ²±·¹µã�Ò²½�ä²µ²³́Í́ µ±á̧�å·̧¶¿̧ ·̧¹µ�²µÀ�Äµ²ÂȨ̀·̧ÝÒÎ½±»́�Ç·µ²µ¶·²Â�̧±²±́Í́ µ±̧�²µÀ�µ¹±̧́ �¹Ç�±»́�Ú¹Ë́ºµÍ́ µ±²Â�Ûµ·±Ò̧½�²µÀ�²ÂÂ�¹Ç�·±̧�¶¹ÍÉ¹µ́µ±�¿µ·±̧�Éº́É²º́À�·µ²¶¶¹ºÀ²µ¶́�Ì·±»�ÚÄÄÑÝ�Ò¶½�̧¿ÉÉẤÍ́ µ±²ºÈ�·µÇ¹ºÍ²±·¹µ�º́¾¿́ ±̧́À�ÎÈ�±»́�Ú¹Ë́ºµÍ́ µ±²Â�Ûµ·±Ò̧½�¹º�º́¾¿·º́À�Ç¹º�Ç¿ÂÂÀ·̧¶Â¹̧¿º́�¿µÀ́º�±»́�Â²ÌÝ�²µÀ�ÒÀ½�±»́�Ä¿À·±¹ºá̧�¹É·µ·¹µ�¹µ�±»́�Í²±́º·²Â�Éº́¸́µ±́ÀÅ�Æ»́�Ä¿À·±¹º�̧»²ÂÂ�Ç¿ºµ·̧»�±»́º́¾¿·º́À�µ¿ÍÎ́º�¹Ç�¶¹É·̧́ �¹Ç�±»́�º́É¹º±�¹Ç�²¿À·±�±¹�±»́�Ú¹Ë́ºµ·µ³�Ô¹²ºÀ�¿É¹µ�¶¹ÍÉẤ±·¹µÅæçè ×Ç�±»́�²¿À·±�Ç·ºÍ�·̧�º́¾¿·º́À�ÎÈ�±»́�ÏÐ�Ã±²±́�Ô¹²ºÀÝ�±»́�ÏÐÄÐÑÄ�Ñ́ º́�Ó́ Ë·́Ì�Ð¹ÍÍ·±±́́ Ý�¹º�±»́Ã́¶º́±²ºÈ�¹Ç�±»́�ÞÚÐ�±¹�»²Ë́�²�Éº́Ê·̧̧¿²µ¶́�º́Ë·́Ì�¹Ç�·±̧�²¿À·±�Ì¹ºéÝ�±»́º́�̧»²ÂÂ�Î́�²�̧±²±́Í́ µ±�·µ�±»́µ́³²³́Í́ µ±�Ấ±±́º�·µÀ·¶²±·µ³�±»́�Éº́Ê·̧̧¿²µ¶́�º́Ë·́Ì�º́¾¿·º́Í́ µ±Å�Æ»́º́�²Â̧¹�̧»²ÂÂ�Î́�²�̧±²±́Í́ µ±�±»²±�±»́Ú¹Ë́ºµÍ́ µ±²Â�Ûµ·±Ò̧½�̧»²ÂÂ�µ¹±�Î́�Î·ÂẤÀ�Ç¹º�±»́�Éº́Ê·̧̧¿²µ¶́�º́Ë·́ÌÅ�Æ»́�Éº́Ê·̧̧¿²µ¶́�º́Ë·́Ì�̧»²ÂÂ�Î́�É́ºÇ¹ºÍ́ ÀÉº·¹º�±¹�±»́�¶¹ÍÉẤ±́À�²¿À·±�Î́·µ³�̧¿ÎÍ·±±́À�±¹�ÞÚÐ�Ã±²ÇÇÅ�Æ»́�Éº́Ê·̧̧¿²µ¶́�º́Ë·́Ì�º́É¹º±�̧»²ÂÂ�²¶¶¹ÍÉ²µÈ�±»́²¿À·±�º́É¹º±�¿É¹µ�̧¿ÎÍ·̧̧·¹µ�±¹�ÞÚÐ�Ã±²ÇÇè
êëìí�î�



��������������	
������������������ ������������

�������� !��"������� �#$���%#�&�' ()!��*�

+,- ./0�1234567�8/9::�82;<45�5/0�70=675�6>�92345�4?�@AB�>67<95�56�CDE�F59>>G�B67�923458�6>�2?458�65/07�5/9?/68=459:8H�5/0�92345�70=675�8/62:3�;0�82;<45503�I/0?�J67�=7467�56K�82;<4554?L�5/0�>4?9:�4?M64N0�>67�807M4N0870?30703G�./0�70=675�6>�92345H�98�>4:03�I45/�5/0�F0N70597O�6>�5/0�CDEH�;0N6<08�9�<95507�6>�=2;:4N�70N673�>674?8=0N546?H�70M40I�9?3�N6=O�4?�5/0�6>>4N08�6>�5/0�CDE�;O�9?O�4?50708503�=975408G�1?O�82;80P20?5�70M4846?8�565/080�70=6758�8/9::�;0�80?5�56�5/0�F0N70597O�6>�5/0�CDEG�./080�9234503�>4?9?N49:�85950<0?58H�0QN:234?L�5/012345678R�6=4?46?H�<9O�;0�2803�4?�5/0�=70=979546?�6>�6>>4N49:�85950<0?58�>67�30;5�6>>074?L8�;O�<2?4N4=9:�;6?37954?L�807M4N08�56�>2:>4::�80N6?397O�<97S05�348N:68270�70P2470<0?58�6>�5/0�F0N2745408�9?3�TQN/9?L0�E6<<48846?9?3�>67�65/07�:9I>2:�=27=6808�6>�5/0�D6M07?<0?59:�U?45J8K�I45/625�70P2474?L�N6?80?5�6>�5/0�1234567G�V>�5/0�CDEF59>>�30507<4?08�5/95�N6770N546?8�?003�56�;0�<930�56�5/0�D6M07?<0?59:�U?45R8�JU?458RK�>4?9?N49:�85950<0?58�WXYZ[\�]̂_�̀[abcdWX̀_�e_̀]d[XH�5/680�N6770N546?8�8/9::�;0�=76M4303�I45/4?�5/700�;284?088�39O8�6>�?654>4N9546?�2?:0889?65/07�3093:4?0�48�9L7003�56�;O�CDE�F59>>G+f- F/62:3�N47N2<859?N08�348N:6803�;O�5/0�92345�N9::�>67�9�<670�30594:03�4?M0854L9546?�;O�5/0�1234567�5/9??0N08897O�2?307�6734?97O�N47N2<859?N08H�5/0�1234567�8/9::�4?>67<�5/0�D6M07?4?L�g6973�4?�I7454?L�6>�5/0�?003�>6782N/�9334546?9:�4?M0854L9546?�9?3�5/0�9334546?9:�N6<=0?89546?�70P24703�5/070>670G�U=6?�9==76M9:�;O�5/0hijkilmkn�op�lqi�rstu�lqvw�joxlkmjl�ymn�zi�yo{vpvi{�ok�myix{i{�lo�vxj|}{i�lqi�vxjkimwi{�lvyiu�joy~ixwmlvoxuok�zolq�mw�ymn�zi�m�kii{�}~ox�zn�lqi�so�ikxvx���omk{�mx{�lqi��}{vlok�+�- �$�) �)���#��&�%# ��)%�� ��&���#�����#&�$��&�#��)�� &�&�$#��) ����)�# ���"��%") !���")�������)&��� ����� !���������)�&���&��$��"��%") !��� %��&���)�%") !��� �)�&���$��������)�&������������ ��&#��� #��)������#�#����)���'��"���)�� &�&�%# ��)%���")������%#������&�� �$������ %��&� !�)������� �����) )��# �#$��"��%") !����! �&�) &�&)��&����)���#��!� )���)�������#��"��%# ��)%�'�����")����"� ������������&��#��"����%���)���#$��"������$#�)���#�)�'��#�%") !���#��"��)�&���%# ��)%���")�������$$�%������ �����)���#��&�����"����%���)���#$��"�����'+�- ��%#���#$��"��� !)!��� ���������������&�����"����&��#��) &���! �&�����#�"��"����&��#��) &��"��#��� �� �)��� ��������")������)��)%"�&��#��"���%# ��)%���) &���%����$#��$������#����) &������� #�����)��&��#�)�&�������%�����")������� %#��#�)��&������$��� %��)���$�$���������$#��"�"���� �)���)���#$��"���%# ��)%�'�� �%)���#$�%# $��%������� ��"��������#$��"��� !)!��� ���������) &��"��������#$��"���%# ��)%����"��������#$��"���%# ��)%���")����)�����%�&� %�'�  !)!��� ����������������")��%# $��%�����"��"��%# ��)%��)���&����&��#�����#�&�� ������"��%# $��%�� !������#$��"���%# ��)%��)������%�$�%)����&�����&�� ������¡¢�#$��"���%# ��)%�'�  !)!��� ����������%# �)� � !� &�� �$�%)��# �%�)������")��� #�����)%%����&����������)$$'+£- ���%�)����#����# ���"#��&����������&'�(��)��������) �����%�)����#����# ��� �) �)��)%"�� �'+¤- �����)�)���%# ��)%���"#��&� #������)&��$#���)%"�&�����# ��#����)�&���&�#�����#����#������������&'��$�)¥(���������¦�%���#��"��)�&������������ ���&��)���&�� ��"���#%)���#��� �� ��§�&!���) &�̈��%)���# ��#���%��) &)����)�)���)�&������#�����������&��)����)�)���)�&���%# ��)%������������&'��$�)����)�)������#������ #���#���������&) &��"��¥(������� %��&�&�� ��"������)���!#��� �� ��)�&�����"��¥(����")������ )��&�)�# !����"��"���©ª«¬©!#��� �� ��# ��"���)�&���%# ��)%�'�¥(���§#)�&�)���#�)��&)������! )������$�#���"��¥(���§#)�&�%")���) �) &$� ) %��#$$�%���)��#��")������� %��&�&�# ��"���%# ��)%�'®̄- �"��%# ��)%���")���������%���&������)�&���&������)�&������������ ��&#��� #��)������#�"#����)�����) &�"���%)������! �&����)����)������� %��&� !��#��� �� �)��� ������) &��"����&��#����"� ���������&�� �(¥̈ �$#��)���#�"����%���)���#$��"�����'®+- �"��%# ��)%����� #���)��&�� ����������)���#��&�����"����%���)���#$��"�����'��"����)$$�#$��"�������")��� #��$��"���#��� �� �)��� ���) &���&��#��#$�%# ��)%��)���#�)�������)��'��"��)�&����"#��&� #�������)���&���$#����"�%# ��)%�����)���#��&'®®- °��� ��# �#$����� ��°�%#�&�±���&��#���)������¦�%���#��"�������)���§#)�&�#$��(�� �)�� ���²�°��� ��# �#$���� ��°�%#�&��°����³́������µ¶��'µ·µ̧�)��������)�����#��"����#����# �#$�)�&���) &�#�"���)�����������%����)������)�� # �)�����������%��'����� ���) &�$#�����%��� ����"#��&����$)����)�����"��"����������� ���#$��"�����������#���#



��������������	
������������������ �������������

����������� !��! "#$% &!'�( $�)�* "+�", -�(.��/ ��0-$��"��/����" �� % !!�".����* "+�",��/ ��0-$��,0!��( �$- ��$+$ -���-�$�%�0- -�$���/$!�%���"�%�1�2/ �3�# "�, �����4�$��!/����- !$)��� ����$�-$#$-0���5$�/��/ �!0$��(� �!6$��!7�6��5� -) 7���-8�"� 9* "$ �% �&:;<'�� % !!�".�����# "!  ��/ �! "#$% !���-��%% *��" !*��!$($�$�.�+�"��/ �" !0��!��+��/ �! "#$% !�* "+�", -1�=+��/ ��0-$��"�$!��(� ����$- ��$+.����$�-$#$-0���5$�/��/ ��**"�*"$�� �:;<7�!8/ �,0!��-�%0, �����-�$�%�0- �$���/ ��0-$��5�"6*�* "!�/�5�/ 8!/ �" �%/ -��/���%��%�0!$��1�=+��/ ��0-$��"�- � ",$� !��/������$�-$#$-0���5$�/��/ ��**"�*"$�� �:;<�%������( �$- ��$+$ -7��/ ��0-$��"�%������* "+�",�(��/��/ �������� !��! "#$% &!'���-��/ ��0-$�1�:  �>?  !�+�"��0-$��: "#$% !>�*�) ��+��/$!�%���"�%�����-$!%��! ��/ �* "!���$- ��$+$ -��!�/�#$�)��/ ��**"�*"$�� �:;<�+�"��/ �3�# "�, �����4�$�1�

@�) �A�

BCDEFFGHIJKGL�MN�JOPHMQ�RHMS�THQIJG�ULJV�LWPQ�NT�XOWL�YZ[�\Z\]�JWP�GJMLV̂��_̀a�bcdefgh�ìbjj�khaialf�f̀abcdefad�melblnebj�ifbfaoalfi�elnjcdelp�blq�ngokjeblna�hakghfi�fg�f̀a�pgrahloalf�clefsi�pgrahlelp�tgdq�ghbcdef�ngooeffaa�el�bl�gmmenebj�oaafelp�el�gkal�iaiiegl�bi�iggl�bi�f̀a�bcdefad�melblnebj�ifbfaoalfi�bhabrbejbtja�tcf�lgf�jbfah�f̀bl�uv�dbqi�bmfah�f̀a�ictoeiiegl�gm�f̀a�bcdef�hakghf�fg�f̀a�wanhafbhqx�ỳa�bcdefghsikhaialfbfegl�fg�f̀a�pgrahloalf�clefsi�pgrahlelp�tgdq�gh�bcdef�ngooeffaa�ìbjj�elnjcdaz{|f̀a�dainhekfegl�gm�abǹ�meldelp}�elnjcdelp�bjj�obfahebj�~ab�laiiai�bld�ieplemenblf�damenealneai}�bimgcld�tq�f̀a�bcdefgh}�bld�blq�gf̀ah�eiicai�hajbfad�fg�f̀a�elfahlbj�nglfhgji�gh�meinbj�̀abjf̀�gm�f̀apgrahloalf�clef�bi�deinjgiad�el�f̀a�oblbpaoalf�jaffah}�f̀a�welpja��cdef�gh��ajjg~��gg��hakghfi}�ghblq�gf̀ah�ngooclenbfegli�mhgo�f̀a�bcdefgh�hapbhdelp�elfahlbj�nglfhgji�bi�ha�cehad�tq�nchhalf�bcdefelpifbldbhdi�iaf�tq�f̀a��nngclfelp�wfbldbhdi��gbhd�gh�efi�icnnaiigh��|f̀a�ifbfci�gm�f̀a�khegh�qabh�bcdef�meldelpi��|f̀a�rbjcai�gm��elblnebj��ahmghoblna��ldenbfghi�tbiad�gl�elmghobfegl�khaialfad�el�f̀a��bcdefadmelblnebj�ifbfaoalfi��bld�|lgfemenbfegl�fg�f̀a�pgrahlelp�tgdq�f̀bf�f̀a�pgrahlelp�tgdq�ìbjj�darajgk�b���aikglia�fg�f̀a�cdefghsi��eldelpi}��angooaldbfegli}�bld��einbj��bffahi}��em�ha�cehad�cldah������������x�v��xB�D�lmghobfegl�tbiad�gl�f̀a�bcdefad�melblnebj�ifbfaoalfi�ìbjj�ta�ictoeffad�fg�f̀a�wanhafbhq�mgh�f̀a�kchkgiagm�edalfemqelp��elblnebj��ahmghoblna��ldenbfghi�bld��elblnebj��ahmghoblna��ldenbfghi�gm��glnahlx�������������������� ¡¢ £¢�

¤¥¦ §̈©ª�«¬®̄°«®�±°²�³́�®́̄±©°®́µ�°®�°²�®©±́ �³²�±¶®¶°·�«¬ª́®�°µ�°̧¯́ ±́́ ®�¬¹�®̈́ �º¬»́ ̄±́ ®°·¼©®½ª¾�°µ�®̈́ �¿¶µ©®¬̄À�Á̄¬»©µ́µ�®̈°®�½°¾�®̈́ �«¬ª́®�®¬�®́̄±©°®́�©ª�©�Â̄©®©̧�°µ�ª©̧́µ�³²�³¬®̈�Á°̄®©́ªÀ½³¾®̈́ �Á°̄®©́ª�̈°»́�°̧¯́ µ́�¬�®̈́ �¹́́ �°±¬¶®�Â̈ ©«̈�ª̈°··�³́�Á°©µ�®¬�®̈́ �¿¶µ©®¬̄�½©¹�°ÁÁ·©«°³·́¾À�°µ�½«¾�¬®́̄±©°®©¬�ª̈°··�³́�́¹¹́«®©»́�¶®©·�°ÁÁ̄¬»́µ�©�Â̄©®©̧�³²�®̈́ �Ã́ «̄́ ®°̄²�¬¹�®̈́ �ÄºÅ¦ÆÇÈ §̈ �́º¬»́ ̄±́ ®°·�¼©®Éª�½¼©®ªÉ¾�¹°©·¶̄ �́¬̄�¹¬̄³́°̄°«́�®¬�́¹¬̄«́À�¬̄�Â°©»́ �̄¬¹À�°²�̄©̧̈ ®�¬̄�°�́»́®¬¹�³̄ °́«̈�¬̄�µ́¹°¶·®�¬�¬́�¬««°ª©¬�¬̄�©ª®°«́�ª̈°··�¬®�«¬ª®©®¶®́�®̈́ �Â°©»́ �̄¬¹�ª¶«̈�̄©̧̈ ®À�³̄ °́«̈�¬̄µ́¹°¶·®�¬�°²�ª¶³ª́Ê¶́®�¬««°ª©¬�¬̄�©ª®°«́¦ÆËÈ §̈´̄ �́°̄ �́¬�¬®̈́ �̄°̧¯́ ±́́ ®ª�³́®Ấ ́�®̈́ �Á°̄®©́ª�̈́ ¯́®¬�°µ�¬�¬®̈́ �̄°̧¯́ ±́́ ®ª�̄́·°®©»́�̈́ ¯́®¬®̈°®�ª̈°··�³́�́¹¬̄«́°³·́�¶·́ªª�́®́̄ µ́�©®¬�©�°««¬̄µ°«́�Â©®̈�®̈́ �Á̄¬«́µ¶̄ �́ª́®�¬¶®�̈́ ¯́©�°µ�°ÁÁ̄¬»́µ³²�®̈́ �Ã́ «̄́ ®°̄²�¬¹�®̈́ �ÄºÅ¦ÆÌÈ <�Í "$+.1��0-$��"�!/����%�,*�.�5$�/��/ �" Î0$" , ��!��+�ÏÐ3:�Ð/�*� "�ÑÒ��"�$%� �Ó1�?0"�/ "7�$+��0-$��"0�$�$Ô !���.�!0(%���"�%��"&!'7��0-$��"�!/����" Î0$" �!0%/�!0(%���"�%��"&!'����%�,*�.�5$�/��/ �" Î0$" , ��!��+ÏÐ3:�Ð/�*� "�ÑÒ7��"�$%� �Ó1ÕÖ× EFFGHIJKGL�MN�JOPHMQ�RHMS�THQIJG�ULJV�LWPQ�NT�XOWL�YZ[�\Z\Z�JWP�GJMLV̂�Ø�"������������ !��! "#$% !7�/ ��0-$��"�!/�����-/ " �����/ �$�- * �- �% �"0� !��+��/ ��=Ð@��@"�+ !!$�����Ð�- ��+�Ð��-0%����-ÙÚÛÜÝÞßÜÞà�áâãäàäÞå�æàçÞãçÝãèé�êëìí�îÜÛäèäÚÞ�&�!��**�$%�(� '1�?$���%$���!��� , ���*" *�"��$����!!$!���% !/����( �-  , -���ï!$)�$+$%�����/" ��ð�" Î0$"$�)��/ ��0-$��"�����**�.�!�+ )0�"-!�!0++$%$ ������" -0% ��/ ��/" ���������%% *��(� �� # �1�=+��/ ��0-$��"�%������" -0% ��/ ��/" ��!��������%% *��(� �� # �7��/ ��0-$��"�%�����%�,*� � ��/ ��0-$�1�=+��/ ��0-$��"�$!��(� ����" -0% ��/ ��/" ��!��������%% *��(� �� # �7��/ �-�%0, ����$����+�/$!�- � ",$���$��7�$�%�0-$�)��/ �!�+ )0�"-!��**�$ -7�,0!��( �$�%�0- -�$���/ ��0-$��5�"6*�* "!1



��������������	
������������������ ����������������������� !"�#$�%"�&#'#('#&!)�#'"�*+,"') ��,�#+,�)!#���#&&�-� �� !.)�/�+ '#/ 0�"1/"& � !"������2.+(+*3$"'",�&#'#('#&!)�)!#���$"�,"�" ",�45""�6 "3�78���'�/�#'.�./# .�+9:;<:=>?�@ABC?DD�EBA�DFGHIJJIKL�CBKJAMCJDN�MFOIJ�A?@BAJD�MKO�IKPBIC?D�ID�DFGQ?CJ�JB�C>MKL?R�SFOIJBAD�MKOFKIJD�D>BFTO�FD?�J>?�DFGHIDDIBK�@ABC?DD�MKO�IKDJAFCJIBKD�IK�?EE?CJ�MJ�J>?�JIH?�BE�DFGHIDDIBKR�U?E?A�JB�J>?VRWR�X?@MAJH?KJ�BE�YJMJ?�=A?MDFA?A�Z?GDIJ?�MJ�[\\]̂_̀̀aaabcd\efĝhefebdij̀ \̂g\fkgclkmidgmkniofecjfc\kpqcgcdfklqoq̂qic̀midgmkniofecjfc\kdijjq̂̂qic̀̂ hrjq\\qcnksihekghlq\�t�uvv�wxyyz{|w}~|x{�����}��|{��}z�|~�wx{~�}w~����z��~���x��yx�|�|w}~|x{�x��x��|w|}v�}���x�}v���|vv������{~~x�~����y}|v�}�����������x�|����x{�~����|�{}~z����}����~�}~��xvvx������x�|�|w}~|x{��~x�~���v}{�z}���}{��~��y��wx{~}|{���|{�~�|��wx{~�}w~��x�y������t����}���{x~�}vvx����

�ML?���



��������������	
������������������ �����������������������	
������
�������� �!""�#�#$!%%&'%�'& ()*&'+�%,&�-./)%� �',!""�!/,& &�%��%,&�)#/&0&#/&#*&� ."&'��1�%,&�-234-�4 �1&'')�#!"3�/&��1�3�#/.*%�5!'�!00")*!6"&7�!#/�89:;<=>;=?�@ABC?C=D�E?F=BF<BGHIJKL�M;:CGC9=��N&1& �%��2%&O�PQ��1%,)'�*�#% !*%�1� �'0&*)1)*� &R.) &O&#%'��S,&�1�""�T)#U�)#1� O!%)�#�O.'%�6&�0 �()/&/�6V�%,&�-./)%� W�*�#% !*%'0 &'&#%&/�%��%,&�XY3�T)%,�.%�Z,)'�)#1� O!%)�#�T)""�6&�#�%�6&�!00 �(&/��)#!#*)!"�'%!%&O&#%'�T& &�0 &0! &/�6V[� -./)%� � Y�(& #O&#%!"�\#)%� S,) /�4! %V�21�!00")*!6"&[�2#/)()/.!"�!%�Y�(& #O&#%!"�\#)%�/&')U#!%&/�%��,!(&�%,&�'.)%!6"&�'])""'+�]#�T"&/U&+�!#/̂� �&_0& )&#*&�5̀ab7�#&*&''! V�%���(& '&&�%,&��#�#$!%%&'%��'& ()*&'��!#/��!**&0%�� &'0�#')6)")%V��1� ��%,&� &'."%'��1�%,&'&�'& ()*&'[�������cdefg� ��hijkf�lmn�ompq�r�stuvlmwg� ���xedik�yzz{f||g�}~�&&'�O!V�#�%�6&�)#*"./&/�)#�%,)'�*�#% !*%�1� �T� ]�0& 1� O&/��#�-##.!"��)#!#*)!"�2#1� O!%)�#�N&0� %'5-�2N'7+��� O����'+�� ��%,& �'& ()*&'�#�%�!''�*)!%&/�T)%,�!./)%�1&&'�!#/�*�'%'��̀.*,�1&&'�O!V�6&�)#*"./&/�)#�%,&&#U!U&O&#%�"&%%& �6.%�O!V�#�%�6&�)#*"./&/�)#�%,)'�*�#% !*%�� �)#�!#V�)#(�)*&'� &R.) )#U�!00 �(!"��1�%,&�XY3��̀&&2%&O'����������1� �/&%!)"'��#��%,& �!""�T!6"&�!#/�&_*"./&/�1&&'��~��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �¡¢�����£����¤¤�������¥�������������¤������������¤�������������������������������������������������������������������¦�§��������̈��̈���������������������������������������©���������������������������������������������������������������¦ª~4 )� �%��«¬�'.6O)'')�#��1�%,&�*�O0"&%&/�!./)%&/�1)#!#*)!"� &0� %�®̄°�!00")*!6"&�*�O0")!#*&� &0� %'�±²³́µ«�«¶«¬·±�µ¶̄«̧®µ«¹�¶̧�º»�®̄�¼½¾¿ÀÁÂÃº�º»�ºÄÅÆ�ÇÈ¿ÉÊ¼ÇÉ�5)1� &R.) &/7�%,&�-./)%� �O!V�'.6O)%�·̄«̧·Ë�)#(�)*&'�1� !00 �(!"�1� �'& ()*&'� &#/& &/�²̄°̧�«¬·±�µ¶̄«̧®µ«�«¶�«¬�Ìµ̧«®̧Í�¶Î�«¬�ÏÐÑ+�#�%�%��&_*&&/�ÒÓÔ��1�%,&�6)"")#U'ÕÖ×�ØÙÚ�ÛÜÝÞßà�áâãØ�âääåâá�âåæçØ�ÞèéÞ�êéà�ãåëìçØØÚæ�ØÖ�ØÙÚ�íÚî×ÚØâ×ï�ÖÕ�ØÙÚ�ðñòó��-""�)#(�)*&'�1� �'& ()*&'� &#/& &/)#�!#�!./)%�&#U!U&O&#%�!'�/&1)#&/�)#�P��ô3-3���Ó���',!""�6&�'.6O)%%&/�%��%,&�3�OO)'')�#�1� �!00 �(!"�6&1� &!#V�0!VO&#%�)'�O!/&��4!VO&#%�6&1� &�!00 �(!"�)'�!�()�"!%)�#��1�"!T��5S,)'�����������#�%�!00")*!6"&�%��*�#% !*%'��	�
���
�������
���	��
�����	
����������
�����~���������� !�"�!"#�$"�#�-./)%��&&�%&'()(*')+�)(,�*-./+')(*0�'&�)//+'*)1+02�3��&&�0& �4!5� �4 �U !O�678�9:;�79<=>?@?�AB:C@D 3�E)#!#*)!"�̀%!%&O&#%�FG0/)G)H'-(�679<=I�9:;@J�A9?�KLMD3�-""�N%,& �ô�#$-%%&'%�̀& ()*&'� 3�OPQRSTUTVW�XSTQTYUTZ�[\] \̂YTYU�_YPU�-./)%��&&�̀abcdcebdf�dcg�ehijfbdcek�ba�djjfbedlfkm�3�
noopqprstu�vwwx�yrq�zs{u|owo�n}r~w��p��t��up{t}uw���

�&&�0& �4!5� �4 �U !O�678�9:;�79<=>?@?�AB:C@D 3��)#!#*)!"�̀%!%&O&#%���@�A�A;7:9�679<=I�9:;@J�A9?�KLMD�3�-""�N%,& �ô�#$-%%&'%�̀& ()*&'� 3�4!U&���

������������������ �������������������� ¡¢�����£��¤�¥�¦§�̈©ª�«¬®̄°±�¦§̈²³́ �̈µ¶������··¥���̧¥����¹�º»» ¼��¥½��¤���¶��¹��¤���¾�¿��À�ÁÂÃÄ�·¹��¹����Å¤���ÆÇÈ�ÉÇÉÇÊË

ÌÍÌÎÏ�ÎÐÍ_ÑÌ�ÑÍÌ�ÌÍ�ÒÓ[ÒÒO� 3�noopqprstu�vwwx�yrq�zs{u|owo�n}r~w��p��t��up{t}uw���ÌÍÌÎÏ�ÎÐÍ_ÑÌ�ÑÍÌ�ÌÍ�ÒÓ[ÒÒO� 3�

ÔÕÖ××�ØÙÚÛÜÙÝÝ� ØÖÚÞÚßÙ�àááÖßÙÜ� âÖ××ãáÙÚÛÜÙÝÝäåÞæ×ÖßçßçèÚÛéãçÜê
ëÞæ×Ößç�ìçèÚÛé�íîïð���ï��� ��ï������������������





�������� �	
������	��������	�
��� �������������

�������

���
��������� ������!"#$%&�'��#(&)�*+�,%%&*",-&�.����������/������
�����	0�	
�
���
���1�234�1�5��1�23�678�9:;:��<7�9=�>??978�=�>@=;5�27:59�A5B�CDEFGH�IJFG�KE�LMN�FM�HKOPFQRSTU�2V�;9?�9W7:�X5Y?�=�79�?9;:5�=Z4 [;�:�5@9�4�1�5�4� \]�;̂�>==9�WW4�2V�;9�7_�>@=;5�27]];55���X5Y?�=�79�?9;:5�=̀�79�ab>cZ� [;�:�5@9��1�5�� \]�;̂�>==9�WW������� ���������������d�����e�f@;9�=�gY�6h[h�ijklmnX�iZ�79�6h[h�iij2looiX�ipq�rst�uvvwxyuzw{�ts�|s}vxtuw�ys~t�uyt}q�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������RSTU��;:�:A���__;A�9�X5Y?�=�79�?9;:5�=Z4� [;�:�5@9�4�1�5��7_��9�l>@=;5�2�95;_;A�5�4� \]�;̂�>==9�WW4� ¡¢¡¢£¡¤�¥¦�§¤̈©¥�¥ª̈«�¬¦¤¢�®̄°�¦£¥±̈©�±²²�¤¡³́ ¤̈¡µ�«̈¶©±¥́¤¡«�·̧¹º̧�»º�¼½¾¿¹¼¼¹ºÀÁ
[ÂÃ�ÄÅÆÇÈÉÊËÌ�ÅÍ�ÊÎÇÏ�ÐÑÉÒÏÉÓÊÇÔÒÕ� Ö

×ØÙ×ØÙ ×ØÙ×ØÙ ×ØÙ
×ØÙ ×ØÙÚÛÜÝÞ









































 

 
This attachment is governed by the related Engagement Letter between Carr, Riggs & Ingram and the Client; the 
terms of which are hereby incorporated into this attachment by reference. By executing the Engagement Letter, 
the parties agree to and intend to be bound by the terms of this attachment.  This attachment lists the North 
Carolina State Single Audit services we are to provide in conjunction with other services in the Engagement 
Letter for the Entity:  

 
 Our objectives will include internal control over compliance related to major programs and an opinion 

(or disclaimer of opinion) on compliance with state statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions 
of state projects that could have a direct and material effect on each major program in accordance with 
the OMB Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina 
issued by the Local Government Commission. (State Single Audit Act of 1996 and G.S. §159‐34 [LEA 
115C] and Section 35‐E of the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina). 
 

 We will conduct our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards (“GAAS”); the 
standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States (“GAGAS”); Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina 
issued by the Local Government Commission. (State Single Audit Act of 1996 and G.S. §159‐34 [LEA 
115C] and Section 35‐E of the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina), and will 
include tests of accounting records, a determination of major program(s) in accordance with State Single 
Audit Act of 1996, and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions. 
As part of an audit in accordance with GAAS and GAGAS, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

 Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal 
control, and because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is an 
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements or noncompliance may not be detected by us, even 
though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with GAAS and GAGAS. In addition, 
an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental 
regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the Financial Statements or on major 
programs. However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of any material errors, 
fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that comes to our attention. We will also 
inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that 
come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential. We will include such matters in the reports 
required for a Single Audit. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit 
and does not extend to any later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors. 
 

 As required by the State Single Audit Act of 1996, we will perform tests of controls over compliance to 
evaluate the effectiveness of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to 
preventing or detecting material noncompliance with compliance requirements applicable to each 
major state project. However, our tests will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an 
opinion on those controls and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal 
control issued pursuant to the State Single Audit Act of 1996. 



 
 An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or 

material weaknesses. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, during the audit, we will 
communicate to management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that 
are required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards, GAGAS, and the State Single 
Audit Act of 1996. 

 

 The State Single Audit Act of 1996 requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the auditee has complied with state statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of state financial assistance awards applicable to major programs. Our procedures will consist 
of tests of transactions and other applicable procedures described in the applicable State Program 
Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance requirements that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of the Entity’s major programs. For state financial assistance programs that are included 
in the applicable State Program Compliance Supplement, our compliance and internal control 
procedures will relate to the compliance requirements that the State Program Compliance Supplement 
identifies as being subject to audit. The purpose of these procedures will be to express an opinion on the 
Entity’s compliance with requirements applicable to each of its major programs in our report on 
compliance issued pursuant to the State Single Audit Act of 1996. 

 
 In addition to your responsibilities identified in the MSA and Engagement Letter, our engagement will be 

conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility for:  
o designing, implementing, establishing and maintaining effective internal controls relevant to the 

preparation and fair presentation of Financial Statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, including internal controls over federal and state 
awards, and for evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities to help ensure that appropriate 
goals and objectives are met   
 

o ensuring that there is reasonable assurance that government programs are administered in 
compliance with compliance requirements 
 

o the selection and application of accounting principles; for the preparation and fair presentation 
of the Financial Statements, schedule of expenditures of state awards, and all accompanying 
information in conformity with the Selected Basis, and for compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations (including state statutes), rules, and the provisions of contracts and grant 
agreements (including award agreements) 

 
o identifying significant contractor relationships in which the contractor has responsibility for 

program compliance and for the accuracy and completeness of that information 
 

o making drafts of the schedule of expenditures of state awards, and related information available 
to us and for the accuracy and completeness of that information (including information from 
outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers) 

 
o providing us with (1) access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the 

preparation and fair presentation of the schedule of expenditures of state awards, such as 
records, documentation, identification of all related parties and all related‐party relationships 
and transactions, and other matters; (2) access to personnel, accounts, books, records, 
supporting documentation, and other information as needed to perform an audit under the 
State Single Audit Act of 1996 

 



o require certain written representations from you about the schedule of expenditures of state 
awards; state projects; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and 
related matters 

 
o evaluating and monitoring noncompliance with state statutes, regulations, and the terms and 

conditions of state projects; take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified 
including noncompliance identified in audit findings; promptly follow up and take corrective 
action on reported audit findings; and prepare a summary schedule of prior audit findings and a 
separate corrective action plan 

 
o identifying all state financial assistance received and understanding and complying with the 

compliance requirements and for the preparation of the schedule of expenditures of state 
awards (including notes and noncash assistance received, such as lost revenues, if applicable) in 
conformity with the State Single Audit Act of 1996 
 

o agreeing to include our report on the schedule of expenditures of state awards in any document 
that contains, and indicates that we have reported on, the schedule of expenditures of state 
awards 
 

o agreeing to include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the schedule of 
expenditures of state awards that includes our report thereon 
 

o acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for 
presentation of the schedule of expenditures of state awards in accordance with the State Single 
Audit Act of 1996; (2) you believe the schedule of expenditures of state awards, including its 
form and content, is stated fairly in accordance with the State Single Audit Act of 1996; (3) the 
methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period 
(or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any 
significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the 
schedule of expenditures of state awards. 

 
 We will issue written reports upon completion of our Single Audit. Our reports will be addressed to Those 

Charged with Governance of the Entity. Circumstances may arise in which our report may differ from its 
expected  form  and  content  based  on  the  results  of  our  audit.  Depending  on  the  nature  of  these 
circumstances,  it may be necessary  for us  to modify our opinions, add a  separate  section, or add an 
emphasis‐of‐matter or other‐matter paragraph to our auditor’s report, or if necessary, withdraw from this 
engagement. If our opinions are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance.  

 
 The Major State Program Audit report on internal control over compliance will state that the purpose of 

the report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control 
over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the State Single Audit Act of 
1996. The report will state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 



Your Success is Our Focus

3906 Electric Road • Roanoke, Virginia 24018 • 540-345-0936 • Fax: 540-342-6181 • www.BEcpas.com

Report on the Firm’s System of Quality Control

To the Partners of
   Carr, Riggs & Ingram LLC
     and the National Peer Review Committee

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of 
Carr, Riggs & Ingram, LLC (the “firm”) applicable to engagements not subject to PCAOB permanent 
inspection in effect for the year ended June 30, 2022. Our peer review was conducted in accordance 
with the Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer Reviews established by the Peer Review 
Board of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Standards).

A summary of the nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the procedures performed in a 
System Review as described in the Standards may be found at www.aicpa.org/prsummary. The 
summary also includes an explanation of how engagements identified as not performed or reported in 
conformity with applicable professional standards, if any, are evaluated by a peer reviewer to determine 
a peer review rating.

Firm’s Responsibility

The firm is responsible for designing and complying with a system of quality control to provide 
the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with the requirements of 
applicable professional standards in all material respects. The firm is also responsible for evaluating 
actions to promptly remediate engagements deemed as not performed or reported in conformity with the 
requirements of applicable professional standards, when appropriate, and for remediating weaknesses in 
its system of quality control, if any.

Peer Reviewer's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the design of and compliance with the Firm’s 
system of quality control based on our review.

Required Selections and Considerations

Engagements selected for review included engagements performed under Government Auditing 
Standards, including compliance audits under the Single Audit Act, audits of employee benefit plans, an 
audit performed under FDICIA, and an examination of a service organization (SOC 2 engagement).

As part of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory entities as communicated by 
the firm, if applicable, in determining the nature and extent of our procedures.



Opinion

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Carr, 
Riggs & Ingram, LLC, applicable to engagements not subject to PCAOB permanent inspection in effect 
for the year ended June 30, 2022, has been suitably designed and complied with to provide the firm with 
reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards 
in all material respects. Firms can receive a rating of pass, pass with deficiency(ies) or fail. Carr, Riggs 
& Ingram, LLC has received a peer review rating of pass.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Roanoke, Virginia
September 15, 2022



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 

KARI FORREST - AT LARGE 
PAT PRESCOTT - TOWNSHIP #1 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. – TOWNSHIP #3 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 
MISSY BASKERVILL - TOWNSHIP #5

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
TIMOTHY A. BUCK 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

May 2, 2024 

TO:  Chair Bohmert and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 
FROM:   Tim Buck, County Manager 
RE: Request to Appoint Dr. Jeremy Johnson 

Eastern Carolina Workforce Development Board (ECWDB) 

Please see attached memo for ECWDB requesting to appoint Dr. Jeremy Johnson to their 
board.  I am requesting Board direction. 

Tab 5





BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 

KARI FORREST - AT LARGE 
PAT PRESCOTT - TOWNSHIP #1 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. – TOWNSHIP #3 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 
MISSY BASKERVILL - TOWNSHIP #5

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
TIMOTHY A. BUCK 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

May 2, 2024 

TO:  Chair Bohmert and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 
FROM:   Tim Buck, County Manager 
RE:      Amend Deductible Reimbursement Policy 

Personnel Director Chantelle Allison is recommending a change to the Deductible 
Reimbursement Policy.  Please see the attached.  I am recommending and requesting 
approval of the amended policy. 

Tab 6



Updated 5/1/2024   

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
DEDUCTIBLE REIMBURSEMENT POLICY FOR GROUP HEALTH PLAN 

 
 

Under the County of Pamlico Group Health Plan, all employees are required to meet a 
deductible before certain services are payable by the insurance carrier.  It is the policy of the 
County that once the employee meets at least $1000 of their annual deductible (In or Out of 
Network combined) the County will reimburse the employee for $500.   If you have met at least 
$1000 of your deductible, you may submit your request for reimbursement to the Personnel 
Department immediately.   

However, requests for partial reimbursement (employee meets at least $500 but less than 
$1000 of the deductible) will only be processed and paid at the end of the deductible year in 
which the deductible accrues.  Partial reimbursement will be calculated as follows:  

Example - Employee paid $800 of their annual deductible by the end of the year: 

$800 (total amount paid) - $500 (employee minimum responsibility) = $300 (reimbursement 
amount, not to exceed $500) 

This policy applies only to full-time, active employees and does not apply to dependents, 
retirees, or COBRA participants  all employees who are eligible for the County’s health insurance 
benefit.  In order to file a request for reimbursement, you will simply need to submit to the 
Personnel Department a copy of an Explanation of Benefits (EOB).  An EOB is generated by the 
insurance carrier and mailed to you after each claim is processed and shows how much of the 
deductible has been satisfied.  Reimbursements will not be issued without an EOB. 

Employees will have 60 days following the end of the deductible year to request 
reimbursement.  No reimbursement requests will be considered following separation of 
employment. All requests for reimbursement must be submitted during active employment. This 
policy will be updated at renewal of the Group Health Plan as needed. 

 

Please feel free to contact the Personnel Department if you have any questions about this policy. 

 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT AND UNDERSTANDING 
 

I have read and understand the County of Pamlico’s Deductible Reimbursement Policy. 
 

Signed:  
 

Dated: 
 

 



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 

KARI FORREST - AT LARGE 
PAT PRESCOTT - TOWNSHIP #1 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. – TOWNSHIP #3 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 
MISSY BASKERVILL - TOWNSHIP #5

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
TIMOTHY A. BUCK 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

May 2, 2024 

TO:  Chair Bohmert and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 
FROM:   Tim Buck, County Manager 
RE: Pamlico County Board of Health Handbook 

Health Director Melanie Campen is requesting approval of the attached Board of Health 
Handbook.  I am recommending and requesting approval. 

Tab 7













































































































































































BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 

KARI FORREST - AT LARGE 
PAT PRESCOTT - TOWNSHIP #1 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. – TOWNSHIP #3 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 
MISSY BASKERVILL - TOWNSHIP #5

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
TIMOTHY A. BUCK 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

May 2, 2024 

TO:  Chair Bohmert and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 
FROM:   Tim Buck, County Manager 
RE:      Car Purchase for DSS 

DSS is requesting to use surplus budget from the current year to purchase a new vehicle. 
Attached is a quote to purchase a 2024 Kia Forte for $21,865.  As justification, DSS 
Director Debbie Green says that their staff is often required to transport clients out of 
County and that they need a reliable mode of transportation. At the meeting or sooner, I 
will provide the Board an inventory of vehicles currently assigned to DSS. 

I am recommending and requesting approval of the purchase.  Funds are available in the 
overall budget.  If the purchase is approved, I am requesting approval of the attached 
line-item transfer needed to properly account for the purchase. 

Tab 8













































BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 

KARI FORREST - AT LARGE 
PAT PRESCOTT - TOWNSHIP #1 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. – TOWNSHIP #3 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 
MISSY BASKERVILL - TOWNSHIP #5

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
TIMOTHY A. BUCK 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

May 2, 2024 

TO:  Chair Bohmert and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 
FROM:   Tim Buck, County Manager 
RE:      Closed Session Health Director Performance Review 

I am requesting a closed session to discuss the above referenced personnel issue. 

Tab 9



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CHAIRMAN 
CANDY BOHMERT – TOWNSHIP #2 

VICE-CHAIRMAN 
DOUG BRINSON - AT LARGE 

KARI FORREST - AT LARGE 
PAT PRESCOTT - TOWNSHIP #1 
EDWARD RIGGS JR. – TOWNSHIP #3 
CARL OLLISON - TOWNSHIP #4 
MISSY BASKERVILL - TOWNSHIP #5

COUNTY OF PAMLICO 
POST OFFICE BOX 776 

BAYBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 28515 
(252) 745-3133 / 745-5195

FAX (252) 745-5514

COUNTY MANAGER 
TIMOTHY A. BUCK 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
TRACY BOYD 

COUNTY ATTORNEY 
DAVID B. BAXTER, JR. 

May 2, 2024 

TO:  Chair Bohmert and Pamlico County Board of Commissioners 
FROM:   Tim Buck, County Manager 
RE:      Direction Regarding Lobbying Activities for Bay River Metro Sewer District 

As you know, the County contracted with Ward and Smith to lobby for funding for 
needed projects.  Please see the attached list submitted to our representatives.  These 
items were discussed and agreed on as priorities at our March 20th retreat. 

Commissioners Forrest and Riggs requested that we direct our lobbyist to ask for funds 
related to Bay River Metropolitan Sewer District.  I am requesting discussion and 
direction by the Board.  

Tab 10


























	5-6-2024 Agenda 
	4-15-2024 Minutes 
	4-23-2024 Budget Minutes 
	1. Budget Amendments 
	2. Board Releases 
	3. Approval to Advertise Outstanding 2023 Taxes 
	4. Approve Carr Riggs and Ingram Contract 
	5. Approval to Appoint Dr. Jeremy Johnson to ECWDB
	6. Approval to Amend Deductible Reimbursement Policy
	7. Approval of PC Board of Health Handbook
	8. Approval for Car Purchase for DSS
	9. Closed Session to Discuss Health Director Performance Review 
	10. Discussion Request: Direction Regarding Lobbying Activities for Bay River Metro Sewer District 
	ADPF8EB.tmp
	Sheet1




